
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

WEDNESDAY 25TH NOVEMBER, 2020 
 

AT 6.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ 
 

VIRTUAL MEETING  
LINK TO MEETING: https://bit.ly/32SRGJU 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Dean Cohen  
Vice Chairman: Peter Zinkin  
 
Councillors  
Elliot Simberg                     Laurie Williams                      Felix Byers  
Laithe Jajeh                       Geof Cooke                            Alan Schneiderman  
Alison Cornelius                 Jo Cooper  
 
Substitute Members  
Sarah Wardle                     Nizza Fluss                            Kath McGuirk  
Tim Roberts                       Nagus Narenthira                   Roberto Weeden-Sanz  
 

 
 

 
In line with the Constitution’s Public Participation and Engagement Rules, requests to submit 
public questions must be submitted on Friday 20 November 2020 by 10AM Requests must be 
submitted to Paul Frost.  
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 
Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Paul Frost 020 8359 2205 paul.frost@barnet.gov.uk 
Media Relations Contact: Tristan Garrick 020 8359 2454 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 
 
Please consider the environment before printing. The average Print Cost for this Committee has reduced 
by £388.45 per meeting, due to paperlight working. 
 

 
 
 
 

https://bit.ly/32SRGJU


 
 
     

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes of the previous meeting  
 

5 - 10 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Declarations of Members' Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and 
Non-Pecuniary Interests  
 

 

4.   Report of the Monitoring Officer (if any)  
 

 

5.   Public Questions and Comments (if any)  
 

 

6.   Members' Items  
 

11 - 14 

7.   Business Planning 2020-25 and Fees & Charges for 202122  
 

15 - 32 

8.   Referral from Chipping Barnet Area Committee to Environment Oct 
2020  
 

33 - 48 

9.   Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

49 - 52 

10.   Any Other Items that the Chairman Decides are Urgent  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
     

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Decisions of the Environment Committee 

 
9 September 2020 

 
Members Present:- 

 
Councillor Dean Cohen (Chairman) 

Councillor Peter Zinkin (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor Elliot Simberg 
Councillor Laithe Jajeh 
Councillor Alison Cornelius 
Councillor Felix Byers 
 

Councillor Alan Schneiderman 
Councillor Jo Cooper 
Councillor Laurie Williams 
Councillor Geof Cooke 
 

 
 

1.    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting that took place on 30 June 2020, be 
approved. 
 

2.    ABSENCE OF MEMBERS  
 
None. 
 

3.    DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 
NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 
None.  
 

4.    REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)  
 
None. 
 

5.    PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)  
 
The Environment Committee noted the detail of a public question that had been 
submitted and circulated.  Ms Janette Evans had the opportunity to ask a supplementary 
question which was responded verbally to by the Intimin Executive Director for 
Environment.     
 

6.    MEMBERS' ITEMS  
 
Councillor Alan Schneiderman – Tackling fly tipping  
 
Councillor Alan Schneiderman was invited by the Chairman to introduce the item. 
Councillor Schneiderman gave a summary of the issue and requested that the 
Committee supported his item. 
 
Councillor Sara Conway was in attendance to speak in favour of the item.   
 
During the consideration the Chairman outlined his support for the item and requested 
that a report be submitted to the next meeting on 25 November 2020.  
 

5

AGENDA ITEM 1



 

2 

Resolved: 

 That the Environment Committee noted the Members Item 

 That the Environment Committee agreed that a report be submitted to the next 
meeting on 25 November 2020. 

 
 
Councillor Jo Cooper – Making it easier to get cycle hangars installed  
 
Councillor Jo Cooper was invited by the Chairman to introduce the item. Councillor 
Cooper gave a summary of the issue and requested that the Committee supported her 
item. 
 
Councillor Anne Clarke was in attendance to speak in favour of the item.   
 
Resolved: 

 That the Environment Committee noted the Members Item 

 That the Environment Committee agreed to support the item and noted that 
developments as outlined verbally by the Interim Executive Director for 
Environment were subject to funding.  

 
Councillor Geoff Cooke – Cutting speeds on residential side roads  
Councillor Geoff Cooke was invited by the Chairman to introduce the item. Councillor 
Cooke gave a summary of the issue and requested that the Committee support his item. 
 
The Interim Executive Director for Environment spoke in support of the item and thanked 
Councillor Cooke for bringing this matter to the Committee.  He stated that side roads will 
be considered when a road limit is under consideration.  
 
Resolved: 
That the Environment Committee noted the report and agreed to support the item.   
 
Councillor Laurie Williams – Action to cut litter and boost recycling 
Councillor Laurie Williams was invited by the Chairman to introduce the item. Councillor 
Williams gave a summary of the issue and requested that the Committee support his 
item.  He stated that bins in parks and town centres should be emptied more frequently.   
He also suggested that solar power bins should be tested in the Borough.  
 
The Chairman said that he agreed that bins in parks should be emptied regularly.   He 
said that bins had in fact been frequently emptied and requested to know if this was not 
the case.      The Interim Executive Director for Environment, Mr Mee spoke in support of 
compacting bins and said that a trial could commence if the Committee were in favour of 
the suggestion.  
 
Resolved  

 That the Environment Committee noted the report.  The Chairman, Councillor 
Dean Cohen requested that Members inform him in the event that bins are not 
emptied frequently.  

 That the Environment Committee agreed that a trial can take place in East Barnet 
Ward.   

 That the Environment Committee agreed to pilot a solar powered compacting 
recycling bin.   

 

6



 

3 

7.    BARNET LONG TERM TRANSPORT STRATEGY  
 
The report was introduced by the Interim Executive Director for Environment.  He 
provided a full outline of the report and requested that the Committee give consideration 
to the report and the recommendations.   Members of the Committee had the opportunity 
to consider the report and raise questions to the Interim Executive Director for 
Environment.  
 
During the consideration of the item there was a request from Councillor Alan 
Schneiderman that recommendations 1-5 be voted on separately, this was put to the 
vote.  
  
 
Resolved: 
1. That the Environment Committee noted the Consultation Report (Appendix B), the 
Updated Initial Equality Analysis (Appendix C) and the Health Equity Assessment 
(Appendix D).  
 
2. That the Environment Committee agreed to adopt the Long Term Transport Strategy 
2020-2041 (at Appendix A to this report)  
 
3. That the Environment Committee delegated authority to the Executive Director for 
Environment to make any subsequent non-material changes to the Long Term Transport 
Strategy 2020-2041 and its supporting documents. 
 
4. That the Environment Committee authorised officers to implement the Delivery Plan 
(as set out in Appendix A - Section 5 of the Long Term Transport Strategy 2020-2041).  
 
5. That the Environment Committee authorised officers to explore both the internal and 
external funding streams available to support the delivery of the Strategy.  
 
The vote recorded for recommendation 1-5 only was: 
 
For – 6  
Against – 0  
Abstained – 4  
 
During the consideration of the item Councillor Schneiderman moved that 
recommendation 6 be amended.  This was unanimously agreed.  
 
6. That the Environment Committee delegated authority to the Interim Executive Director 
for Environment, in discussion with the Chairman of Environment Committee, to 
undertake procurement activities related to the implementation of the Delivery Plan, 
including undertaking feasibility studies.   The Environment Committee requested that 
the Committee Members receive regular updates and receive reports that relate to key 
decisions for consideration.   
 

8.    REPORT HIGHWAY ASSET MANAGEMENT  
 
The report was introduced by the Assistant Director for Highways, Mr Jamie Cooke. He 
provided a full outline of the report and requested that the Committee give consideration 
to the report and the recommendations.   
 

7



 

4 

During the consideration of the item Councillor Cooke moved an amendment to amend 
recommendation 2 to include that 50% expenditure be on footways and 40% on 
Carriageways.  This was seconded by Councillor Schneiderman.     The Chairman 
requested this be voted on.  The vote recorded was: 
4 – for the amendment  
6 – against the amendment  
 
This amendment was lost.   
 
The Chairman then moved to the vote and the Environment Committee unanimously:  
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That the Committee approved the capital expenditure of £6 million for the delivery of 
the 2021/22 Highway Network Recovery Plan (NRP) Work Programme consisting of 
carriageway and footway renewal works, carriageway patching and associated works.  
2. That the Committee agreed the proposed investment proportions detailed in 
paragraph 5.2.2 of this report.  
3. That the Committee authorised officers to undertake consultation on the Work 
Programme.  
4. That the Committee approved the development of a Highways Infrastructure Asset 
Management Plan (HIAMP). 
 

9.    STREET CLEANSING ENHANCEMENT  
 
The report was introduced by the Street Scene Director, Mr Craig Miller.  He provided a 
full outline of the report and requested that the Committee give consideration to the 
report and the recommendations.   
 

 
Having considered the report the Chairman moved to the vote and the Environment 
Committee unanimously:  
 

Resolved:  
1. That the Environment Committee noted the contents of the report and the further 
investment of £600,000 per annum in the service.  
2. That the Environment Committee endorsed the Street Cleansing enhancements 
proposed and the implementation of an area based operating model.  
3. That the Environment Committee requested that the Interim Executive Director for 
Environment reports back to the Committee in 12 months detailing the progress of full 
year benefit realisation from the proposed service enhancements. 
 

10.    WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Councillor Alan Schneiderman noted that two items that had been resolved at the last 
meeting had not been reported or featured in the work programme.    These items were 
in relation to Green recovery and 20Mph zones. 
 
The Executive Director for Environment gave a verbal response to confirm that these 
topics will be featured within reports.   
 
Resolved: 
That the Environment Committee noted the work programme  

8



 

5 

That the Environment Committee requested that the above items be listed and reported 
to the Committee when possible.  The Committee noted that a further item in regard to 
sustainability will be added to the Work Programme.   
That the Environment Committee requested that the description for car parks and 
charging be amended   
 

11.    ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 
 

The meeting finished at 19:46 
 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Summary 

Members Items have been received for the Environment Committee.  The Committee are 
requested to consider the items and provide instructions. 

 

Environment Committee 

25 November 2020 

Title 

Member’s Items  
 

Councillor Alan Schneiderman – HOSTING A 
‘TINY FOREST’ 
 
Councillor Jo Cooper – MAKE OUR PARKS 
SAFER 
 
Geoff Cooke – FULL AND OVERFLOWING 
LITTER BINS ON STREETS AND IN PARKS 
 
Laurie Williams – SUSTAINABLE PARK 
BENCHES 
 
Laithe Jajeh - POLICY REGARDING CROSS 
OVERS 

Report of Head of Governance 

Wards All Wards 

Status Public 

Urgent No 

Key No 

Enclosures None 

Officer Contact Details Paul Frost, 020 8359 2205, paul.frost@barnet.gov.uk  

11

AGENDA ITEM 6

mailto:paul.frost@barnet.gov.uk


 

 

Officers Recommendation 

That the Environment Committee’s instructions in relation to these Member’s Items 
are requested. 

 
 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 Members of the Committee have requested that the items tabled below are submitted to 

the Environment Committee for considering and determination.   The Environment 
Committee are requested to provide instructions to Officers of the Council as 
recommended.   
 

Alan Schneiderman HOSTING A ‘TINY FOREST’ 
 
Tiny Forests are densely packed forests of native trees that fit into the 
size of a tennis court. This brings all the benefits of a forest - climate 
cooling, lower flood risks, biodiversity, improved air quality, and 
physical and mental wellbeing right into the heart of local areas. Tiny 
Forests are being planted across Europe and are being promoted in 
the UK by the environmental charity, Earthwatch. 
I ask that officers work with GoodGym Barnet, a volunteer 
organisation that is interested in fundraising and engaging the 
community to start a Tiny Forest project in Barnet. 

 

Jo Cooper  MAKE OUR PARKS SAFER 
 
Barnet’s parks and open spaces are valued by residents and more 
important than ever during the Covid-19 pandemic. 
I request that the Committee considers whether it would be possible 
to increase funds for maintenance and enforcement in our parks by 
making more use of community infrastructure levy and section 106. If 
it is possible, I ask that we make a referral to the relevant committee 
asking for this to be considered, and, if agreed, that a report is 
brought back with options. 
I also ask for a review of how to involve the police and council 
services in developing specific plans to reduce and design out crime 
in parks. 
 

Geoff Cooke FULL AND OVERFLOWING LITTER BINS ON STREETS AND IN 
PARKS 
 
What statistics exist and what effect has the Covid-19 pandemic had 
on usage and frequency of emptying litter bins on streets and in 
parks? 

12



Laurie Williams SUSTAINABLE PARK BENCHES 
 
Park benches made from recycled plastic can be strong and 
environmentally friendly and are used in Trent Park in Enfield. I 
request that officers consider whether these could be used in Barnet’s 
parks. 
 

Laithe Jajeh The Environment Committee in April 2019 introduced a change to the 

policy regarding cross overs whereby a road that had existing grass 

verges outside a resident's property would no longer be permitted to 

have a drop kerb installed to access their property.  

The intention of the policy change was to ensure sufficient parking 

provision remained in roads within the borough and to protect grass 

verges and the overall appearance of our roads and footpaths. 

Having been contacted by many residents, I believe in hindsight that 

this was an over simplification of policy and the end result goes above 

and beyond the intent of the committee. 

Good examples of unintended consequences are areas of new 

developments intermingling with existing housing and as a 

consequence a strain is now placed upon the parking provision of 

roads. This can be evidenced on the Ridgeway in Mill Hill Ward, The 

Fairway in Hale Ward, Laleham Ave in hale Ward and Westmere in 

hale Ward. As residents are no longer able to apply for a cross over, 

they are being forced to park a significant distance from their 

properties or they are parking on the grass verges themselves. This 

neither benefits the residents nor the appearance of the streets 

themselves. 

I therefore propose to the Committee that we reverse the decision 

previously made and enable residents to apply for cross overs in 

instances where grass verges exist in front of their property.  

 

 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 No recommendations have been made. The Committee are therefore requested to give 

consideration and provide instruction. 
 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 

13



3.1 N/A 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Post decision implementation will depend on the decision taken by the Committee. 
 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 As and when issues raised through a Member’s Item are progressed, they will need to be 
evaluated against the Corporate Plan and other relevant policies. 

 
5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, 

Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 
5.3.1 A Member (including Members appointed as substitutes by Council) will be permitted to 

have one matter only (with no sub-items) on the agenda for a meeting of a committee or 
Sub-Committee on which s/he serves. The matter must be relevant to the terms of 
reference of the committee.  
 

5.3.2 The referral of a motion from Full Council to a committee will not count as a Member’s 
Item for the purposes of this rule. 

 

5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 None in the context of this report.    
 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  

 
5.5.1 Members’ Items allow Members of a Committee to bring a wide range of issues to the 

attention of a Committee in accordance with the Council’s Constitution.  All of these 
issues must be considered for their equalities and diversity implications.  
 

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 None. 
 

14



   
 

 

 

ARE  

 

Environment Committee 

 25 November 2020 
 

Title  

Business Planning 2020-25 and Fees 
& Charges for 2021/22 
 

Report of Chairman of the Environment Committee 

Wards All 

Status Public  

Urgent No 

Key Yes 

Enclosures                          

Appendix A – Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and 
Savings Proposals for Committee 
Appendix B – Environment Fees & Charges 2021/22 – To 
Follow  

Officer Contact Details  
Geoff Mee, Executive Director – Environment  

Geoff. Mee@barnet.gov.uk 

Summary 

A Business Planning report was agreed by Policy and Resources Committee on 24th 
September 2020 outlining the council’s updated Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
to 2024/25 and the future financial challenges facing the council.   
 
Policy and Resources Committee also agreed the process whereby Theme Committees 
will consider the response to this challenge in November, by considering savings proposals 
to balance the council’s budget (the same process as used in previous years). The paper 
sets out the estimated savings requirements across Theme Committees for the period 
2020-25.  
 
Since then, and taking account of the emerging national and local situation with the Covid 
pandemic, work has continued on the MTFS as a whole and concentrating specifically on 
the budget for 2021/22.  

15

AGENDA ITEM 7

mailto:Geoff.%20Mee@barnet.gov.uk


   
 

   
 

 

 

Officers Recommendations 

1. That the Environment Committee consider the MTFS proposals that relate 
to the committee as set out in Appendix A after having considered the initial 
equalities impacts and refer these recommendations to Policy and Resources 
Committee for decision.  
 

2. That the Environment Committee notes the changes to the fees and 
charges 2021/22 as set out in Appendix B, which will be included in the budget 
proposals submitted to the Policy and Resources Committee.  
 

 

1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

 
1.1 This report is required as part of the Council’s annual business planning process. 
 

1.2 This includes the review of:  
 

 Savings proposals within the Environment Committee’s authority so they can 
then be recommended to Policy and Resources Committee to set a balanced 
budget for 2021/22 and contribute to the MTFS savings 2022/23 – 2024/25; 
 

 Proposed changes to Fees and Charges 2021/22, which will be included in 
the budget proposals submitted to Policy and Resources Committee.  

 
2. STRATEGIC CONTEXT  
 

 
The savings for 2020/21 approved last year have been reviewed for deliverability now and 
any implications for future years.  The Business Plan has been revised to reflect the 
consideration of previous savings and additional savings which this report identifies.  
 
Following the review of the savings agreed last year and additional savings which are now 
possible this report asks the Committee to agree to the revenue savings proposals in 
Appendix A and recommend them to Policy and Resources Committee in December.   
 

The report also asks Environment Committee to note the changes to the fees and charges 
for 2021/22 to support the Environment Business Plan, and the delivery of front line service 
within the Environment Directorate.  
 
The outcomes of all theme committee discussions will go forward as recommendations to 
Policy and Resources Committee in December 2020. The budget will be formally agreed 
each year, after appropriate consultation and equality impact assessments, as part of 
Council budget setting, and therefore could be subject to change.  
  

16



   
 

   
 

2.1 Background to 2021/22 Business Planning 
 

2.1.1 The Council has a statutory duty to set a balanced budget for the coming 
financial year and uses the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) to 
estimate the budget position for the following three years. Savings proposals 
for future years should be identified via an ongoing process and proposed to 
Committee. Savings proposals for all years are proposed through Theme 
committees, then Policy and Resources Committee, and the Full Council in 
March to be approved. 

 

2.1.2 Between 2010/11 to 2020/21, the Council successfully identified savings 
proposals totalling c.£191m. In early March 2020, Full Council were presented 
and approved an estimated budget gap of £36.830m between 2021/22 to 
2024/25. Accompanying this were savings proposals of £17.572m. 

 

2.2 Approach to MTFS 2021-25 
 

2.2.1 In June 2020, Policy and Resources Committee were presented with an update 
on the impacts of Covid and an introduction to the 2021/22 to 2024/25 MTFS 
process. A more detailed update on the MTFS was presented to September 
Policy and Resources committee with a revised budget gap and proposed 
savings identified to date. That report also included a recommendation for 
saving proposals to be presented to the relevant Theme committees in 
November for consideration.  

 

2.2.2 Due to the challenges facing the council’s services arising from the pandemic, 
and the uncertainty in the future trajectory of key budget areas (e.g. adult social 
care demand, on and off street parking, and the local economic outlook) a 
modified approach for the MTFS for 2021/22 to 2024/25 was proposed in 
October 2020. This will: 
 

a. Defer decisions on long-term funding for service pressures in 2021/22 until 

the likely future requirement is known with more certainty. Short term 

funding sources can be used (such as appropriate earmarked reserves) until 

longer-term service needs are clearer.  

 

b. The most severe pressure at present time is the continued financial shortfall 

for the parking service; 

 

c. Prioritise finalising savings proposals to balance the revised 2021/22 budget 

gap; 

 

d. Continue, where possible, to identify and progress savings initiatives for 

2022/23 to 2024/25. 

2.2.3 In a situation of considerable uncertainty, this approach will prioritise balancing 
the 2021/22 budget with robust savings proposals without losing sight of the 
medium term financial outlook to 2024/25. 

17



   
 

   
 

 

2.3 MTFS November Summary 
 

2.3.1 As at November, the estimated budget gap between 2021/22 to 2024/25 is now 
£53.380m. Taking this revised budget gap with proposed savings to date, the 
shortfall to balancing 2021/22 and 2022/23 to 2024/25 is set out in the table 
below. 

 
 

MTFS Summary 
2021/22 

£'m 

2022/23 

£'m 

2023/24 

£'m 

2024/25 

£'m 

Total 

£'m 

September Policy and Resources Budget Gap 27.272 18.017 9.961 6.035 61.285 

Further revisions to the budget and service 

pressures since September 
(12.192) 1.410 0.086 2.395 (8.301) 

Revised Budget Gap at November 15.080 19.427 10.047 8.430 52.984 

Savings Identified to date (11.190) (8.748) (9.646) (7.718) (37.302) 

Shortfall / (Surplus) to Balanced Budget 3.890 10.679 0.401 0.712 15.682 

 

 

2.4 Committee Context  
 

2.4.1 2020/21 has set some unprecedented challenges for the Environment 
Directorate as it responded to the Covid 19 pandemic.  

 

 Waste services continued throughout the period with only minor changes due 
to the resilience and professional attitude of our staff.  

 Parking enforcement was suspended during lockdown with a significant loss of 
on and off street Parking Revenue.  

 Special arrangements were made for parking for NHS and other critical staff  

 Parking enforcement staff were redeployed to support social distancing in our 
parks which saw an incredible increase in use during this period. 

 The increased park usage led to challenges for litter clearance and the 
suspension of access to play and outdoor facilities.  

 Basic highways maintenance continued throughout to ensure safety on roads 
and pavements whilst some projects were suspended due to the freezing of LIP 
funding from TfL.  

 Some Highways staff were redeployed to assist with Government funded 
initiatives for Social distancing in Town Centres, School Streets and the 
development of temporary cycling facilities.  

 Cemeteries, Crematoria and Mortuary capacity were stretched across the 
whole service and a project to build additional burial facilities was fast tracked 
to enable rapid completion.   

 

2.4.2 Meanwhile the Environment team have been assessing the possible future 
impacts of the pandemic on the whole range of their services. Emerging issues 
for the service are noted below; 

18



   
 

   
 

 

 The ongoing impact of changes to work and commuting behaviours on the 

level of parking demand and on and off street revenues. Early indications 

would suggest a new level of demand that is materially lower than previous 

levels.  Before the November 2020 lockdown paid on street parking was 

75% of previous levels at its peak, with much lower levels also seen. There 

is uncertainty over the timing and likelihood of a full recovery. An in depth 

and comprehensive review of parking policy and future direction for the 

service is underway. The decision has been taken not to recognise the 

service pressure in 21/22. However, the service is working to find ways to 

help with the financial shortfall which is reflected in the savings noted in 

appendix A.  

 The decision to suspend TfL LIP funding has had a significant impact on 

the Environment directorates ability to continue to support small to medium 

improvement schemes, this funding also provided for a number of key 

services including Disabled Bay parking facilities and School Crossing 

Patrols which had to be funded from elsewhere. Following the recent 

settlement by TfL with Central Government we have now been informed 

that LIP funding has been reinstated for the balance of this year and so we 

are looking to reinstate a number of schemes. However, at this point it is 

not clear what the position will be for future years funding. 

2.4.3 Barnet is often characterised by its greenspace and during the peak of the 
pandemic, access to and the provision offered within our parks and open 
spaces was a key enabler in supporting the health and wellbeing of our 
residents. Parks and open spaces improve our physical and mental wellbeing, 
strengthen our communities and can make our neighbourhoods more attractive 
places to live and work. This is evident in the very high usage of the recently 
delivered schemes at Montrose Playing Fields, Silkstream Valley, Victoria 
Recreation Ground and Victoria Park which demonstrates that the social, 
environmental, economic and health benefits to the community are significant. 

 

2.4.4 In recognising this value, masterplan proposals continue to be developed for 
West Hendon Playing Fields, Barnet Playing Fields, Copthall Sports Hub, 
Heybourne Park, Colindale Park and Rushgrove Park, with individual business 
cases for investment to be brought forward at a future date.  

 

2.4.5 We are embarking on a journey to consider sustainability and to integrate 
policies and practices across the council to improve the environment. This will 
build on central government’s work on green recovery and the environment bill. 
Our Tree Planting Programme and the value of Barnet’s Natural Capital 
Account (a methodology for recognising the value of our parks) will play a key 
role within the development of this workstream. 

 

19



   
 

   
 

2.4.6 Building on the considerable success of the charged for Green Waste service 
(which has the highest take up rate in London), we will use the additional 
funding to embark on delivering a much improved Street Cleansing programme 
with area based teams responding more locally to residents, area committees 
and ward members. We are also planning new initiatives to reduce fly tipping 
and to grow our service to Trade Waste customers. 

 

2.5 Environment Committee Savings 
 

2.5.1 To achieve a balanced budget in 2021/22 and to meet the MTFS savings 
2022/23 to 2024/25, indicative savings proposals have been identified for 
Environment Committee.  Environment Committee are being asked to consider 
the savings programme for the next four years. The full range of savings and / 
or income generation proposals within Environment Committee’s area of 
responsibility can be seen in Appendix A, these total £6.558m.   

 

2.5.2 Appendix A covers the MTFS period 2021/22 to 2024/25. We are focussing on 

2021/22 savings and the principle areas of savings are;  

 Parking – acceleration of CPZ programme and expansion of scope and 

funding to bring in more areas where there are requests and/or anticipated 

need and traffic management obligations.  This will potentially see 

additional income generated which may aid in offsetting some of the 

unchanged operational costs of existing areas of control (including car 

parks) which have seen lower income generation than usual as a result of 

COVID-19. 

 Green Waste – the green waste charging project has been more 

successful than we had originally anticipated which has enabled us to 

expand the street cleaning service. The additional surplus generated in 

2020/21 which was not previously in the MTFS has been carried forward 

in to 2021/22. For commercial waste the current focus in year is to recover 

the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic on income generation with the view 

to further income growth in future financial years.  

 Street Lighting – explore the possibility of the flexible control mechanism 

that is installed in the new lighting to identify where additional optimisation 

opportunities exist.  

 

2.6 Fees & Charges for 2021/22 
 

2.6.1 Fees and charges are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that the costs of 
chargeable services are covered and the Council is achieving value for money. 
Appendix B sets out the new and changed fees and charges for 2021/22 for 
services within the Environment Directorate. 

20



   
 

   
 

 

2.6.2 The CPI forecast built into the MTFS for 21/22 is 1.3% based on the Office 
Budget Responsibility (OBR) update in July 2020. Therefore, where fees and 
charges have increased in line with inflation the rate used is 1.3%. 

 

2.6.3 A number of new fees and charges are proposed which require approval from 
Environment Committee. For example, an annual license for tennis coaching 
and fitness instructors using Barnet’s parks and greenspaces.  
 

2.6.4 The general principles that have been applied to the fees and charges for 
2020/21 is as per the table below: 

 

Service Fees and Charges - brief description of changes 

Parking 
No changes are being made to the fees and charges published in 

2020/21 

Greenspaces Increase in line with inflation  

Street Scene 
Apart from new charges and where no increases have taken place all 

other charges are increased in line with inflation 

Street Lighting, DLO & 

EV Charging 

No changes are being made to the fees and charges published in 

2020/21. This is due to the charges for Banners being within a range 

depending on the specific requirements of each request. For the 

proposed EV charges this is also within a range with a maximum 

charge of £0.34 per kilowatt hour.  

Cemetery and 

Crematorium 

Increase in line with inflation; in some cases this is less due to 

rounding, where applicable these fees and charges will also be 

charged at Milespit Cemetery.  

Highways 

All existing Fees and Charges are increased in line with inflation, other 

than where it is due to either (a) the charge being statutory and as 

such is not subject to inflation, (b) where a new charge has been 

added, (c) a few charges have been removed as they are no longer 

required. 

Trading Standards and 

Licensing 

All existing Fees and Charges are increased in line with inflation, other 

thank those which are statutory and as such is not subject to inflation 

Environmental Health 

All existing Fees and Charges are in increased in line with inflation, 

other than where it is due to either (a) the charge being statutory and 

as such is not subject to inflation, (b) food safety training courses have 

remained the same due to market rate for these products or (c) 

21



   
 

   
 

increased higher than inflation to reflect that the cost of delivering 

the service was not reflected in the previous charges.  

  
 

2.7 Recovery Plan 
 

2.7.1 The Covid-19 pandemic provides an extremely challenging situation for Barnet, 
its residents and the wider borough. In response to the pandemic, the council 
had to focus on critical services, including a number of new services to directly 
respond to the needs of residents.  

 

2.7.2 As lockdown restrictions eased, the council then moved to focusing on 
recovery, initially around a framework of deciding which services to restore in 
their previous form, which to retain from the lockdown and which to re-invent by 
bringing back in a new way. A programme of recovery planning has been set 
up to co-ordinate this process and deal with the challenges that recovery will 
bring for the council, the borough and its residents. This committee will 
contribute to the Clean, Safe and Well Run workstream, Family Friendly 
workstream and Thriving workstream.  

 

2.7.3 All Environment services have now recommenced, however some services 
within Re Highways have not returned to the same business as usual pre Covid.  

 The Local Implementation Plan funding from TfL which was suspended 
has just been reinstated for the balance of this year (as noted in above).  

 The majority of projects and other activities have resumed, including work 

on the MTFS projects. 

 However some partners, operators etc have been affected which impacts 

our projects. For example, the Advertising market is still hugely impacted 

by the effects of COVID-19 and all providers we are dealing with are not 

anticipating any recovery until next financial year.  

 The additional £500k invested in Street Cleansing in 18/19 has been 

maintained for 19/20 and a further £600k investment is being made into 

this service to enhance borough cleanliness and will carry through to 

2021/22.  

 Parking enforcement fully recommenced on 8 June 2020, revenue 

recovery is being monitored but is still lower than before the pandemic.  

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

3.1 Recommendation 1: Local Government continues to face significant 
reductions in funding and increased demand for services, as set out in the 

22



   
 

   
 

above context. These challenges require longer term, robust financial and 
strategic planning and the recommendations in this report support this. 

 

3.2 By law, the council is required to set a balanced budget. These proposals are 
the best way of doing that by meeting financial requirement and delivering 
outcomes and ambitions for Barnet. 

 

3.3 Recommendation 2: It is recommended that the Environment Committee 
notes the proposed fees and charges for 2021/22, as it is considered good 
practice to review fees and charges annually to ensure that the costs of 
providing the services are recouped. In addition, a number of new fees and 
charges are proposed which require approval from Environment Committee. 
 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

4.1 The alternative option is not to approve the MTFS. This, however, is not 
considered to be good practice and may expose the council to the risk of not 
achieving the savings targets or being able to set a balanced budget.  There is 
a statutory requirement to set a balanced budget and submit budget returns to 
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG). 

 

4.2 The alternative approach is to not review the fees and charges or to adjust the 

current fees and charges, or to not add new ones where appropriate. This, 

however, is not considered good practice, and will potentially expose the 

Council to the risk of not recovering the costs of the provision of the service, or 

potentially, over recovery, where the charge is set at a cost recovery level. 

Given the financial pressures currently faced by the Council the only viable 

option for continuing to provide services is to levy and appropriate fee or 

charge. 

 
5. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

5.1 If the Environment Committee approves recommendation 1 made by this report, 
then the savings proposals will be referred to Policy and Resources Committee 
on 8th December 2020 as part of the council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS). Public consultation on the MTFS will commence in December. 

 

5.2 If the Committee is minded to approve Recommendation 2, then the fees and 

charges will be considered for agreement by the Policy and Resources 

Committee as part of the Council wide budget setting. Once the budget is 

approved by full Council the fees and charges will be posted on the Council’s 

website and, where a statutory duty requires it, advertised in the approved 

publication, and appropriate location. The new fees and charges will be 

implemented from April 2021. 

23



   
 

   
 

 
6. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

6.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

6.1.1 This report supports the council’s corporate priorities as expressed through the 
Corporate Plan for 2019-24 which sets out our vision and strategy for the next 
5 years. This includes the outcomes we want to achieve for the borough, the 
priorities we will focus limited resources on, and our approach for how we will 
deliver this. 

 

6.1.2 Our 3 outcomes for the borough focus on place, people and communities: 

 a pleasant, well maintained borough that we protect and invest in 

 our residents live happy, healthy, independent lives with the most 
vulnerable protected 

 safe and strong communities where people get along well 

6.1.3 The approach for delivering on this is underpinned by four strands; ensuring 
residents get a fair deal, maximising on opportunities, sharing responsibilities 
with the community and partners, and working effectively and efficiently.  

 

6.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 

 

6.2.1 The Environment Committee savings programme will enable the council to 
meet its savings target as set out in the MTFS. These budgets will be formally 
agreed each year, and individual proposals will be subject to appropriate 
consultation and equality impact assessments where necessary. For this 
reason, the proposals are subject to change. 

 

6.2.2 Adjusting fees and charges will ensure effective cost recovery for delivering 
the service; prices listed do not include VAT, which will only be charged where 
indicated. The Constitution requires that all changes to fees and charges 
should be included in the budget proposals submitted by theme Committees 
to the Policy & Resources Committee.  

 
6.3 Social Value  

 
6.3.1 None applicable to this report, however the council must take into account the 

requirements of the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 to try to maximise 
the social and local economic value it derives from its procurement spend. The 
Barnet living wage is an example of where the council has considered its social 
value powers. 

 

6.4 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

6.4.1 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that: “without prejudice 
to section 111, every local authority shall make arrangements for the proper 

24



   
 

   
 

administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one of their officers 
has responsibility for the administration of those affairs”. Section 111 of the 
Local Government Act 1972, relates to the subsidiary powers of local 
authorities. 

 

6.4.2 Section 31A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires billing 
authorities to calculate their council tax requirements in accordance with the 
prescribed requirements of that section. This requires consideration of the 
authority’s estimated revenue expenditure for the year in order to perform its 
functions, allowances for contingencies in accordance with proper practices, 
financial reserves and amounts required to be transferred from general fund to 
collection fund. 

 

6.4.3 Local authorities owe a fiduciary duty to council tax payers, which means it must 
consider the prudent use of resources, including control of expenditure, 
financial prudence in the short and long term, the need to strike a fair balance 
between the interests of council tax payers and ratepayers and the community’s 
interest in adequate and efficient services and the need to act in good faith in 
relation to compliance with statutory duties and exercising statutory powers. 

 

6.4.4 These savings proposals are to be recommended to Policy and Resources 
Committee. They will then be subject to consultation and a cumulative equality 
impact assessment before being referred on to Council so that Council may set 
the Council Tax, being mindful of any equality impacts and consultation 
responses. 

 

6.4.5 The Council’s Constitution (Article 7, Article 7 – Committees, Forums, Working 
Groups and Partnerships) sets out the responsibilities of all Council 
Committees.  

 

6.4.6 Responsibilities for Environment Committee include: 
1)  Responsibility for all borough-wide or cross-constituency matters relating to 
the street scene including, parking, road safety, lighting, street cleaning, 
transport, waste, waterways, refuse, recycling, allotments, parks, trees, 
crematoria and mortuary, trading standards and environmental health. 
2) To submit to the Policy and Resources Committee proposals relating to the 
Committee’s budget for the following year in accordance with the budget 
timetable. 
3) To make recommendations to Policy and Resources Committee on issues 
relating to the budget for the Committee, including virements or underspends 
and overspends on the budget (including fees and charges). No decisions 
which result in amendments to the agreed budget may be made by the 
Committee unless and until the amendment has been agreed by Policy and 
Resources Committee. 
4) To receive reports on relevant performance information and risk on the 
services under the remit of the Committee. 
 

25



   
 

   
 

6.4.7 The council’s Financial Regulations can be found at:  
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s60716/Appendix%20L%20-
%20Financial%20Regulations%20Tracked.pdf  
 

6.4.8 Changes to fees and charges should be included in the budget proposals 
submitted by theme Committees or the relevant committee to the Policy & 
Resources Committee. The budget recommended by Policy and Resources 
Financial Committee to Full Council will incorporate the latest projection of 
income from fees and charges. Full Council will approve all fees and charges 
as part of the budget report. 

 

6.4.9 Local authorities have a variety of powers to charge for specific statutory 
services set out in statute. The Local Government Act 2003 also provides a 
power to trade and a power to charge for discretionary services, the latter on a 
costs recovery basis. Discretionary services are those that a local authority is 
permitted to provide under statute but is not obliged to do so. The power to 
charge for discretionary services is not available to local authorities if there is a 
statutory duty to provide the service or if there is a specific power to charge for 
it or if there is a prohibition on charging for the service. 

 

6.4.10 Additionally, the Localism Act 2011 provides local authorities with a general 
power of competence that confers on them the power to charge for services but 
again subject to conditions/limitations similar to those noted above. 

 

6.4.11 Where authorities have a duty to provide a statutory service free of charge to a 
certain standard, no charge can be made for delivery to that standard, however 
delivery beyond that point may constitute a discretionary service for which a 
charge could be made. 

 

6.4.12 Some of the proposals, relate to savings resulting from operational decisions 
being made in a different way and are therefore estimated savings. The saving 
is therefore an indicative saving and its deliverability will be dependent on a 
number of factors. As part of the budget setting process, Policy and Resources 
Committee will consider the need for an appropriate contingency to cover any 
savings that are indicative and may not be met due to operational decisions. 
Some of the proposals in the MTFS relate to proposals that are at a very early 
stage. These proposals will be subject to further business planning and decision 
making to test whether they can be delivered and what the impact of such a 
proposal will be. These proposals will be considered in further detail during 
future business planning reports. 

 

6.4.13 All proposals emerging from the business planning process will need to be 
considered in terms of the council’s legal powers and obligations (including, 
specifically, the public-sector equality duty under the Equality Act 2010). 

 

6.5 Risk Management 
 

26

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s60716/Appendix%20L%20-%20Financial%20Regulations%20Tracked.pdf
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s60716/Appendix%20L%20-%20Financial%20Regulations%20Tracked.pdf


   
 

   
 

6.5.1 The Council has taken steps to improve its risk management processes by 
integrating the management of financial and other risks facing the organisation. 
The allocation of an amount to contingency is a step to mitigate the pressures 
that had yet to be quantified during the budget setting process.  

 

6.5.2 The allocation of budgets from contingency seeks to mitigate financial risks 
which have materialised. 
 

6.6 Equalities and Diversity  
 

6.6.1 Equality and diversity issues are a mandatory consideration in the decision 
making of the council. 

 

6.6.2 Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector equality duty in 
making their decisions. The Equality Act 2010 and the Public-Sector Equality 
Duty within it expects that  elected Members to satisfy themselves that equality 
considerations are integrated into day-to-day business and that all proposals 
emerging from the business planning process have taken into consideration the 
impact, if any, on any protected group and what mitigating factors can be put in 
place. The equalities duties are continuing duties they are not duties to secure 
a particular outcome. The objectives of the public sector equality duty are found 
at section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 and are as follows: 

 

6.6.3 A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to:  

 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; 

 advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

6.6.4 Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between 
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it involves having due regard, in particular to the need to: 

 remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic; 

 take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not 
share it; 

 Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by 
such persons is disproportionately low. 
 

6.6.5 The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different 
from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to 
take account of disabled persons’ disabilities. 

 

27



   
 

   
 

6.6.6 Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 
involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

 Tackle prejudice, and 

 Promote understanding. 
 

6.6.7 Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons 
more favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct 
that would otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act. The relevant protected 
characteristics are: 

 Age 

 Disability 

 Gender reassignment 

 Pregnancy and maternity 

 Race, 

 Religion or belief 

 Sex 

 Sexual orientation 

 Marriage and Civil partnership (to a limited extent) 
 

6.6.8 This is set out in the council’s Equalities Policy together with our strategic 
Equalities Objective - as set out in the Corporate Plan - that citizens will be 
treated equally with understanding and respect; have equal opportunities and 
receive quality services provided to best value principles. 

 
6.6.9 Where there are changes to service delivery or changes to staff, these will 

impact on individuals in different ways. However, at each stage of the process, 
the council will conduct an equalities impact assessment (EqIA) where 
appropriate to ensure that where persons are impacted, proper measures are 
considered to mitigate the effect as far as possible. Those affected by any 
changes resulting from any of the proposals will be engaged, as set out in 
Appendix A under ‘Consultation’. Where necessary, proposals will not be 
implemented or agreed until members have fully considered the equality 
impacts and responses to any consultation. 

 

6.6.10 The revenue savings sheet shown at Appendix A indicates that an equalities 
impact assessment has been carried out for one saving proposal for the West 
Hendon Playing Fields Masterplan. For the majority of savings proposals, the 
need for an equality impact assessment will kept under review as the specific 
proposals develop and will be carried out if required. In addition, for the 
Chargeable Garden Waste proposal an equalities impact assessment was 
completed for the introduction of the chargeable service and so this will be 
reviewed and refreshed to account for any change.  

 

6.6.11 All human resources implications will be managed in accordance with the 
Council’s Managing Organisational Change policy, which supports the 
Council’s Human Resources Strategy and meets statutory equalities duties and 
current employment legislation.  

 

6.7 Corporate Parenting 

28



   
 

   
 

 

6.7.1 In line with Children and Social Work Act 2017, the council has a duty to 
consider Corporate Parenting Principles in decision-making across the council. 
The outcomes and priorities in the refreshed Corporate Plan, Barnet 2024, 
reflect the council’s commitment to the Corporate Parenting duty to ensure the 
most vulnerable are protected and the needs of children are considered in 
everything that the council does. To this end, great attention has been paid to 
the needs of children in care and care leavers when approaching business 
planning, to ensure decisions are made through the lens of what a reasonable 
parent would do for their own child. 

 

6.7.2 The Council, in setting its budget, has considered the Corporate Parenting 
Principles both in terms of savings and investment proposals. The Council 
proposals have sought to protect front-line social work and services to children 
in care and care leavers and in some cases, has invested in them. 

 

6.8 Consultation and Engagement 
 

6.8.1 As a matter of public law, the duty to consult with regards to proposals to vary, 
reduce or withdraw services will arise in four circumstances: 

 where there is a statutory requirement in the relevant legislative 
framework 

 where the practice has been to consult, or, where a policy document 
states the council will consult, then the council must comply with its own 
practice or policy 

 exceptionally, where the matter is so important that there is a legitimate 
expectation of consultation 

 Where consultation is required to complete an equalities impact 

 assessment. 
 

6.8.2 Regardless of whether the council has a duty to consult, if it chooses to consult, 
such consultation must be carried out fairly. In general, a consultation can only 
be considered as proper consultation if: 

 comments are genuinely invited at the formative stage 

 the consultation documents include sufficient reasons for the proposal 
to allow those being consulted to be properly informed and to give an 
informed response 

 there is adequate time given to the consultees to consider the proposals 

 there is a mechanism for feeding back the comments and those 
comments are considered by the decision-maker / decision-making body 
when making a final decision 

 the degree of specificity with which, in fairness, the public authority 
should conduct its consultation exercise may be influenced by the 
identity of those whom it is consulting 

 where relevant and appropriate, the consultation is clear on the reasons 
why and extent to which alternatives and discarded options have been 
discarded. The more intrusive the decision, the more likely it is to attract 
a higher level of procedural fairness. 
 

29



   
 

   
 

6.8.3 The council will perform a budget consultation during December 2020 through 
to January 2021.  This consultation will cover any proposals to increase council 
tax together with seeking views on the council’s budget overall. 

 

6.8.4 In terms of service specific consultations, the council has a duty to consult with 
residents and service users in a number of different situations including 
proposals to significantly vary, reduce or withdraw services. Consultation is also 
needed in other circumstances, for example to identify the impact of proposals 
or to assist with complying with the council’s equality duties. Service specific 
consultations will take place where necessary in line with timescales for any 
changes to be implemented. 

 

6.8.5 If when council sets the budget envelope some service specific consultations 
have not been completed, then Council will allow a contingency so that decision 
makers may make alternative decisions should there be undesirable equalities 
impacts. 

 

6.8.6 Where appropriate, separate service specific consultations have already taken 
place for some of the savings and a link to the report presenting findings of the 
consultation is provided within the MTFS spreadsheet (Appendix A).  In 
addition, it has been noted in the appendix that for a number of savings 
proposals the requirement for a consultation will be considered as the proposals 
are developed.  

 

6.9 Insight 
 

6.9.1 None in the context of this report 
 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 

Business Planning Report to Policy & Resources Committee on 06/01/2020 

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=10084&Ver=4  

Fees and Charges Report - 2020/2021 to Environment Committee on 20/01/20 

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=695&MId=9909&Ver=4  

 

 

30

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=10084&Ver=4
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=695&MId=9909&Ver=4


Impact Assessment

New 

Savings 

Reference 

Department
Corporate Plan 

Outcome
Theme Committee Description of saving Consultation (How are we consulting on this proposal) Impact on Service Delivery Impact on Customer Satisfaction

Equalities Impact

All published EqIAs are online at: https://barnet.gov.uk/your-

council/policies-plans-and-performance/equality-and-

diversity/equality-impact-assessments

2021/22 FTE Impact 2022/23 FTE Impact 2023/24 FTE Impact 2024/25 FTE Impact 'Total savings  (All years)

ENV4 Environment
Outcome 4:  Clean, 

Safe & Well Run 
Environment

Smart Cities - Opportunities to positively impact residents and businesses by providing better access to 

emerging technologies whilst also reviewing opportunities for commercialisation; such as electric vehicle 

infrastructure and 5G capacity. 
Service specific consultation will be undertaken if required.

This would involve the provision of a new service(s), which is likely to 

be outsourced.  

This saving is not anticipated to have an adverse impact on 

customer satisfaction and it is possible that it may enhance 

perception that the Council is providing a valuable new service 

and providing value for money.

An initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) will be produced as 

the specific proposals are developed in full.  
(25) (25) (50) 0 (100)

ENV5 Environment
Outcome 4:  Clean, 

Safe & Well Run 
Environment

Parking - A review of services and policies to ensure a consistent, fair approach to improving traffic, 

highway air quality and road safety. Unlocking under-used potential from Council assets and meeting 

existing unaddressed needs and demands on the highway.

Service specific consultation will be undertaken if required. This saving requires a change to service delivery.

This saving is not anticipated to have an adverse impact on 

customer satisfaction and it is possible that it may enhance 

perception that the Council provides value for money.

The need for an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) will kept under 

review as the specific proposals develop and carried out if required. 
(750) (750) (750) (750) (3,000)

ENV7 Environment
Outcome 4:  Clean, 

Safe & Well Run 
Environment Fundamental Service Review of existing waste collection arrangements.

Service specific consultation to be undertaken as part of 

feasibility / statutory planning consultation will be required as 

proposals are taken forward. 

This saving requires a change to service delivery.
Potential negative effect on satisfaction in the short term 

resulting from any change to existing arrangements.

An initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) will be produced as 

the specific proposals are developed in full.  
0 0 (1,000) 0 (1,000)

ENV8 Environment
Outcome 4:  Clean, 

Safe & Well Run 
Environment

Highways and Transportation, Post 2023 Service Redesign - The end of the current Highways service 

arrangement offers an opportunity to redesign a new service which offers to potential to deliver savings 

and efficiencies. The year 6/7 review will provide an options analysis for the new service which will enable 

the authority to ascertain which service model best meets the needs of the borough.

Service specific consultation will be undertaken if required 

once a review has been undertaken. 

It is anticipated the service would operate better, more efficient and 

with some financial savings in the long term.

Part of the aim of this review is to ensure a sound structure is 

put in place where customers can see the benefits either 

through better communication network and/or service outcome 

on the highway network

The need for an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) will kept under 

review and carried out if required. 
0 0 0 (900) (900)

ENV10 Environment
Outcome 4:  Clean, 

Safe & Well Run 
Environment

Street Lighting Service Delivery Proposed Changes - Amending the contractual requirements in respect to 

the roads that are included within the Post Core Investment Programme (PCIP). This programme includes 

the replacement of some 2,500 lighting columns over the next 6/7 years.  This could be accommodated 

whilst still complying with recommended lighting standards.

Making best use of the new street lighting control systems installed as part of the LED conversion project 

to optimise lighting levels as appropriate at various times, whilst still ensuring compliance with 

recommended lighting standards. 

The proposed changes would still ensure compliance with 

recommended road lighting standards and therefore a service 

specific consultation is not required. 

This would involve taking a different risk based approach to lighting 

column replacement timescales and changing the profile of when they 

will be replaced to a later date, whilst ensuring that the structural 

integrity and hence safety is maintained through an alternative testing 

programme with replacements only taking place following a testing 

failure.

No noticeable impact as road lighting compliance is still achieved.

Unlikely to be an issue. A general satisfaction service will be 

conducted in respect to the overall service to determine views.

The need for an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) will kept under 

review and carried out if required. 
(100) 0 0 0 (100)

ENV11 Environment
Outcome 2:  Family 

Friendly
Environment

Delivery of West Hendon Playing Fields Masterplan, Progress with Royal Institute of British Architects 

(RIBA) .The stages will  include professional fees required to deliver planning consent; including but not 

limited to site surveys and investigations, multi disciplinary design team, project management, cost 

consultancy, civil and structural engineering and planning fees. Potential phased development of proposal 

would return savings from prioritised facilities. Saving is predicated on securing capital investment to 

deliver financial benefit. Detail will be presented in the Outline Business Case to be presented to 

Committee for approval.

Service specific public consultation undertaken in 2018 and 

2019. Report presented to Environment Committee. Key 

stakeholders  including statutory bodies. 

https://engage.barnet.gov.uk/we-asked-you-said-we-did

It is anticipated that subject to investment and scheme approval, there 

will be a responsibility for the service to manage contracts/ slas/ 

partnerships as a result of delivery. This will be reviewed as part of a 

management options appraisal, detailed within the Outline Business 

Case. 

Investment into West Hendon Playing Fields will transform 

opportunities for local residents, providing a range of facility 

mixes and improved environmental benefits. 

EqIA and HIA undertaken as part of Environment Committee report 

(March 2020). 

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=695&MI

d=9910&Ver=4  

Further EqIA / HIA to be completed as part of design development / 

Outline Business Cases. 

0 0 0 (200) (200)

ENV12 Environment
Outcome 2:  Family 

Friendly
Environment

Review of low quality - low value parks and open spaces to assess the feasibility of installing renewable 

energy solutions such as batteries at substations and solar farms. Initial investment required to undertake 

feasibility and undertake planning assessment.

Consultation to be undertaken as part of feasibility / statutory 

planning consultation will be required if proposals are taken 

forward. 

It is anticipated that subject to agreement the there will be a 

responsibility to manage any contract / service level agreement / lease 

agreement which is executed. It is also anticipated that any proposal 

will support the Council in the development of a Sustainability Strategy, 

producing a range of environmental benefits.  

The opportunity may impact on access to parks and open 

space sites which are deemed low quality / low value. 

A full EqIA will be completed as part of individual proposals and 

assessment undertaken to progress options. 
0 0 (75) 0 (75)

ENV13 Environment
Outcome 2:  Family 

Friendly
Environment

Introduction of semi-permanent café buildings at five sites within the Borough, generating revenue through 

lease arrangements. Purchase and installation of five cafes at £150k each, funded by ten-year loan. First 

year surplus estimated at £24k for five sites, allowing for loan repayment and interest. Saving is predicated 

on securing capital investment to deliver financial benefit.

Market engagement to review interest in proposal. 

increase in facilities across the parks and open spaces portfolio. 

Anticipated that specific lease agreements will be secured with market 

providers / organisations to deliver offer. 

The opportunity is anticipated to improve customer satisfaction, 

providing venues within parks for the community. 

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) will be produced as the 

specific proposals develop.  
0 0 (24) (24) (48)

ENV14 Environment
Outcome 2:  Family 

Friendly
Environment

Improvement plan for tennis delivery and facilities within Barnet. Introduction of booking system and 

programme of investment in facilities, with the intention of establishing sustainable, revenue-generating 

model. Saving is predicated on securing capital investment to deliver financial benefit, detail will be outlined 

in the Business Case. 

As proposals are developed, service consultation and 

engagement will be undertaken as required.

Strategic approach to tennis management and delivery across Barnet, 

improved operations and efficiency with booking process. Opportunity 

to generate income which can be reinvested back into creating 

sustained service. 

Potential resident objection in respect of introducing charges 

for court hire which may have previously been at nil cost. The 

Outline Business Case will detail a proposed pricing structure 

to ensure where appropriate concessions are offered in order 

to co-ordinate a balanced programme. 

A full EqIA will be completed as part of the review and evaluation of 

the Tennis Pilot prior to the implementation of the Tennis Project
0 (20) (38) (37) (95)

ENV16 Environment
Outcome 2:  Family 

Friendly
Environment

Consideration as to the possibility of establishing a trading arm for trees service, offering tree management 

and policy services to neighbouring local authorities as a commercial enterprise. Initial investment required 

to confirm feasibility and approach to matters including legal, governance and resources required.

Consultation and engagement plan to be drafted. Changes will 

not impact on Barnet residents so no consultation is required. 

Options appraisal to address review of resources / model required for 

implementation and provide recommendations. To be factored into 

business model proposed. 

The opportunity is not anticipated to have an adverse impact 

on customer satisfaction. 

The need for an equality impact assessment (EqIA) will kept under 

review as the proposal develops and carried out if required. 
0 0 (20) (20) (40)

ENV27 Environment
Outcome 4:  Clean, 

Safe & Well Run 
Environment

Improved Management of Skips placed on the Public Highway - Utilise available legislation to better 

manage the safety impact of skips being placed on the Public Highway, including ensuring that all skips 

placed have been approved with appropriate Licences and that such licence conditions are fully compliant. 

Whilst there will be costs involved in increased resources to monitor this activity there are also 

mechanisms within the legislation to recover costs where non-compliance is evident. Currently a low level 

of compliance is occurring and this raises safety concerns for all highway users and therefore increased 

focus in this area will be beneficial for all.

As required by the specific Legislation related to this area of 

activity.
Improved safety on the Public Highway Likely to be positive for the majority of Highway users

The need for an equality impact assessment (EqIA) will kept under 

review as the proposal develops and carried out if required. 
0 (100) (100)

ENV28 Environment
Outcome 4:  Clean, 

Safe & Well Run 
Environment

Green Waste Cost Recovery - Increase of the original Medium Term Financial Strategy  commitment 

associated with this chargeable service following launch in 2019/20 and the popularity of the service with 

residents.

Service specific consultation undertaken during the original 

decision making process to introduce a chargeable service - 

https://engage.barnet.gov.uk/garden-waste-charging-2019

None None 
No equalities impact assessment required as no changes proposed 

to current service offer.
(500) 0 0 0 (500)

G&CS16

Growth and 

Corporate 

Services

Outcome 1:  

Thriving

Environment 

Committee
RE Management fee arrangements and Guaranteed Income arrangements to be reviewed

At this stage, the nature and impact of the proposal on service 

delivery is not known, so the need for  consultation will be 

assessed as the proposal is developed further 

Not yet known Not yet known Impact on equalities will be assessed as the proposal is developed. (100) (100) (100) (100) (400)

(1,475) (995) (2,057) (2,031) (6,558)

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

At the meeting of the Chipping Barnet Area Committee on the 6th October 2020, The 
Chairman referred the report on Barnet Road, EN5 – Request for Zebra Crossing, to the 
Environment Committee for consideration. The reason for this referral was due to the 
scheme exceeding the maximum £25,000 limit permitted per scheme for the Area 
Committee budget.  
 

 

Recommendations  
1. That the Environment Committee consider the report on Barnet Road, EN5 – 

Request for Zebra Crossing attached as Annex 1 to this report. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Environment Committee 
25 November 2020 

Title  
Referral from Chipping Barnet Area 
Committee  

Report of Head of Governance 

Wards High Barnet  

Status Public 

Enclosures                          Annex 1 - Barnet Road, EN5 – Request for Zebra Crossing  

Officer Contact Details  

Abigail Lewis  

Abigail.Lewis@barnet.gov.uk 

020 8359 4369 

33

AGENDA ITEM 8

mailto:Abigail.Lewis@barnet.gov.uk


1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  

1.1 The Council’s Constitution permits the Chairman of an area committee to refer 
applications to the area committee budget to the Environment Committee.   

 
1.2  At the meeting of the Chipping Barnet Area Committee on the 6th October 2020 

the Committee:  
RESOLVED that the scheme be referred to the next Environment 

Committee meeting for determination.  

 
2. REASON FOR REFFERAL 
 
2.1 The reason for this referral is outlined in the minutes of the Chipping Barnet 

Committee October 6th, 2020 (7.2) due to the zebra crossing scheme proposed 
for Barnet Road, EN5 exceeding the maximum £25,000 limit permitted per 
scheme for the Area Committee budget. The cost of the scheme would include 
the widening of the footway on the North side, removing vegetation, electrical 
works and ad hoc traffic management as outlined in section 2.10 of the main 
report (Annex 1). 
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

3.1 As set out above. 
 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

4.1 N/A   
 

5. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 
N/A 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

6.1 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

6.2 As outlined in section 2.10 and 5.2 of the main report (Annex 1) 
 
6.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 
6.3.1 Article 2 – section 2.2 (e) states a Chairman of an area committee may refer 

applications to the area committee budget to the Environment Committee. The 
reasons for the referral must be stated. In making the referral, the Chairman 
can make recommendations to Council or parent Committee.  
 

6.4 Risk Management 
 

6.5 As outlined in the main report (Annex 1) 
 
6.6 Equalities and Diversity  
6.7 As outlined in the main report (Annex 1) 

34



 
6.8 Consultation and Engagement 

 
6.9  As outlined in the main report (Annex 2) 
6.10  

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
7.1 As outlined in the main report (Annex 2) 
7.2 Minutes of the Chipping Barnet Area Committee  

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g10124/Printed%20minutes%2006th-Oct-
2020%2018.00%20Chipping%20Barnet%20Area%20Committee.pdf?T=1 
 

 

35

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g10124/Printed%20minutes%2006th-Oct-2020%2018.00%20Chipping%20Barnet%20Area%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g10124/Printed%20minutes%2006th-Oct-2020%2018.00%20Chipping%20Barnet%20Area%20Committee.pdf?T=1


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Summary 

 
This report details the results of a feasibility study for the installation of a zebra crossing on 
Barnet Road, EN5, between Field End and Quinta Drive.   
 

 

 

Officers Recommendations  

1. That the Chipping Barnet Area Committee notes the results of the feasibility 
study that was undertaken in Barnet Road, between Field End and Quinta Drive, 
EN5. 
 

 

2. That the Chipping Barnet Area Committee notes the recommendation that no 
further action is taken at this time. 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Chipping Barnet Area Committee  
 

6 October 2020 
  

Title  
Barnet Road, EN5- Request for Zebra 
Crossing 

Report of Executive Director Environment 

Wards High Barnet 

Status Public  

Urgent No 

Key No 

Enclosures                          Appendix 1 - Drawings: 

Officer Contact Details  
Geoff Mee -  Executive Director Environment 
Geoff.Mee@barnet.gov.uk 

37

mailto:Geoff.Mee@barnet.gov.uk


1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

1.1 During the Chipping Barnet Area Committee on the 3 October 2019, Councillor 
Longstaff introduced his Member’s Item, requesting a new zebra crossing on 
Barnet Road, EN5 between Field End and Quinta Drive.  

 
1.2 Following discussion of the item, the Chipping Barnet Area Committee 

unanimously agreed and resolved: 
 

‘To allocate funding of up to £5,000, from this year’s CIL Area 
Committee budget, to undertake the review, with a report back to a 
future meeting.’ 
 

1.3 This report therefore details the investigation carried out to address the above 
request.  

 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Site Observations: 
 

2.1 Barnet Road is a main road connecting High Barnet to the A1. It is residential 
in character; subject to a 30mph speed limit from Galley Lane to Glebe Lane 
and 40mph thereafter until the junction with A1.  Barnet Road is also a bus route 
serving London Buses and other bus services.  

2.2 In the area between Field End and Quinta Drive there are a small number of  
existing driveways and one eastbound bus stop. The westbound bus stop is 
located soon after the junction with Quinta Drive.  

2.3 Quinta Drive connects Barnet Road with Mays Lane, in addition Whitings Hill 
Primary School is located along this road. 

2.4 The junction between Barnet Road and Quinta Drive is heavily used and traffic 
tend to slow down to allow turning manoeuvres or stopping behind stationery 
buses.  

2.5 During the site visit possible locations for a zebra crossing were identified and 
surveys were carried out in these locations, as shown on Figure 1 below.  

2.6 The footway along this stretch of the road is narrow: approximately 2m wide on 
the south side and 1.5m on the north side of the road. 

 

Traffic surveys: 

 

2.7 A Pedestrian survey was carried out on 28 November 2019 on Barnet Road 
to establish the most popular crossing points for pedestrians. The survey was 
carried out for 1 day from 7:00 to 10:00am and from 13:00 to 17:00 pm on the 
sites shown on the map below (Figure.1) and results are shown on table below 
(Table 1). 

 
 

38



  
AM Peak 
(7-10am) 

PM Peak 
(1-5pm) 

A→B 3 13 

B→A 11 15 

C→D 0 0 

D→C 0 2 

E→F 0 0 

F→E 0 0 

G→H 0 1 

H→G 0 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2.8 A speed survey was carried out in November 2019 on Barnet Road for 7days 

24-hours on three sites as shown on Fig.2 below. Results are shown on Table 
2 below. 
 

 
Table 2 – Speed survey Results 

 Eastbound Westbound 

85th Percentile 
Speed (mph) 

Mean Speed 
(mph) 

85th Percentile 
Speed (mph) 

Mean Speed 
(mph) 

Location 1 31.9 24 30 23.6 

Location 2 
 

34.2 30 33.8 29.1 

Location 3 
 

35.8 30.7 34.4 29.6 

 
Note: 
85th percentile speed: 85% of traffic travels at or below this speed 

Table 1 –Pedestrian Survey Results 

Figure.1 Pedestrian survey location plan 

 

 

39



Mean speed: The average taken by summing all vehicle speeds and dividing 

by the number of vehicles. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
2.9 Collisions Data: The Personal Injury Collision Data for the five years until 31 

December 2018 was analysed in relation this location.  For Members 
information this is the latest data available from the police, in addition the 2018 
data is provisional and subject to change. The analysis of the data determined 
that: 
 

 No collisions occurred between Field End and Quinta Drive.  

 Three collisions occurred at the junction with Quinta Drive, all ‘slight’ and 
involving cars.  

 One fatal accident occurred on Barnet Road, north-east of Field End in 2014 
involving one pedestrian crossing the road. The latter was caused by 
speeding and by pedestrian crossing on a bend, where visibility is very poor.  

 
Feasibility and Proposals: 

 

2.10 Proposals and recommendations set out in this report are based on existing 
traffic regulations (Manual for Streets 2 and Local Transport Note 1/95 and 
2/95) which state that: 
 

 Recommended footway width at crossing point to be a minimum of 2 meters, 
to be sufficient for both pedestrians waiting to cross and pedestrians walking 
along the footway; 
 

 Zebra crossings are generally only used when the speed limit is 30mph or 
below and they should not be installed on roads with an 85th percentile 
speed of 35 mph or above. 

 

 

Fig.2 Speed survey location plan 

40



2.11 Results from surveys above show that the majority of pedestrians’ movements 
happen near the junction with Quinta Drive (A-B movements), however, the 
demand of pedestrians crossing the road at this location is very low. It has been 
noted that the pedestrian movement might be associated with the presence of 
the eastbound bus stop which serves commuters travelling to the High Barnet 
area.  
 

2.12 Speed along this stretch of road is above 30mph. As expected, speed is slightly 
reduced approaching the junction with Quinta Drive as the traffic tends to slow 
down to allow turning manoeuvres or stopping behind stationery buses at bus 
stops. 
 

2.13 Having taken into account the low demand of pedestrians crossing the road, 
that there have not been accidents involving pedestrians at junction with Quinta 
Drive and that the footway is not wide enough at the moment, it is not proposed 
to progress the investigation of any additional traffic management measures at 
this current time, especially given the low demand of pedestrians.  
 

2.14 Officers met with Cllr Longstaff on site in January 2020, to assess the situation 
and to have a better understanding of the need of a zebra crossing in the area. 
Officers explained the reasons for their recommendation not to proceed with 
the proposals at this moment in time. It was explained how a new zebra 
crossing on Barnet Road near Quinta Drive would exceed the £25k allocated 
budget for Area Scheme as it would involve the widening of the footway on the 
north side, removing part of the vegetation, the electrical works for the belisha 
beacons of the crossing and an ad hoc traffic management during the works 
being on a major road. 
 

2.15 Due to the current limited number of pedestrian movements Officers feel that 
the costs do not, at this current time, justify the proposals.  

 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 Another option considered would be the installation of a set of traffic islands to 
serve as uncontrolled crossing. However, this option has been rejected by 
Officers as the width of the carriageway is not enough to accommodate this 
type of crossing.  

 
4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 
4.1 Should the Committee decide to agree with the recommendations in this report, 

no further action is recommended at this location, although monitoring of vehicle 
speeds will continue to take place. 

  

41



 
5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 

 
 

5.1.1 The scheme will help to address the Corporate Plan delivery objectives of “a 
clean and attractive environment, with well-maintained roads and pavements, 
flowing traffic”, “Barnet’s children and young people will receive a great start in 
life”, “Barnet will be amongst the safest places in London” and “a responsible 
approach to regeneration, with thousands of new homes built” by helping 
residents to feel confident walking to school, helping to reduce traffic 
congestion. 
 

5.1.2 Improvements that encourage walking or other active travel will help to deliver 
the active travel and recreation opportunities identified in the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy for children and the population generally. 
 

5.1.3 The Joint Strategic Needs also identifies that encouraging travel by foot, bicycle 
or public transport could drive good lifestyle behaviours and reduced demand 
for health and social care services. 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 As the recommendation is not to proceed with any improvements at this 
location, no additional funding is required from The Chipping Barnet Area 
Committee CIL funding.  

 
5.3 Social Value  

 
5.3.1 None in relation to this scheme. 

 
5.4 Legal and Constitutional References 

 
5.4.1. The Council’s Constitution, in Article 7, states that that Area Committees: “In 

relation to the area covered have responsibility for all constituency specific 
matters relating to the street scene including parking, road safety, transport, 
allotments” parks and trees. 

 
5.4.2.   The Traffic Management Act 2004 places obligations on authorities to ensure 

the expeditious movement of traffic on their road network.  Authorities are 
required to make arrangements as they consider appropriate for planning and 
carrying out the action to be taken in performing the duty. 
 

5.5 Risk Management 
 

5.5.1 None in the context of this report. Risk management may be required for work 
resulting from this report.  
 
 

42



5.6 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.6.1 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires a decision-maker to have ‘due 
regard’ to achieving a number of equality goals: (i) to eliminate discrimination, 
harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by the Act; 
(ii) to advance equality of opportunity between those with protected 
characteristics and those without; and (iii) to foster good relations between 
persons with a relevant protected characteristic and those without. The 
relevant protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. It 
also covers marriage and civil partnership with regard to eliminating 
discrimination. 

 
5.6.2 The safety elements incorporated benefit all road users equally as they would 

improve safety and traffic flow at those locations. 
 
5.6.3 The proposal is not expected to disproportionately disadvantage or benefit 

individual members of the community. 
 

5.7. Corporate Parenting 
 
5.7.1. Not applicable in the context of this report 

 
5.8. Consultation and Engagement 

 
5.8.1. If the scheme is not progressed no Consultation will be required. 
 
5.9. Insight 
 
5.9.1. The options developed for the scheme were informed through analysis of injury 

accident data and on-site observations of the issues.  

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 Chipping Barnet Area Committee 3 October 2019    

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=711&MId=9879&Ve

r=4  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

43

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=711&MId=9879&Ver=4
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=711&MId=9879&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



E

H

A

B

C

D

F

G

BARNET ROAD ZEBRA CROSSING

PEDS SURVEY

BC/001750-07-01_3300_01

Survey with the permission of the Controller of

London Borough of Barnet. Licence No 100017674

© Crown copyright and database right 2018. All rights reserved. 

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordinance

Her Majesty's Stationery Office. 

45

AutoCAD SHX Text
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Stable End

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Greenfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
HAZEL MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Dorin

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
HEDGEROW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Greenacres

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
BARNET ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Lily Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
SADDLERS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
66a

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
RAEBARN GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Shireswood House

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
Broad

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Scotswood

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Turnberry

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
75a

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
and Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Anjalee

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Rosewood

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Garth

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Gresham

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Ridings Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Arkley Rise

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Barley Edge

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
Elena

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Orchard Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
QUINTA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Totteridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
Loxwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Benash

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Riding Stables

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
Eaves

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
75b

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Radlett

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Marchmont

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Omega

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
131.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
Latona

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
14 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
GARTHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Leigh

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
ARKLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
Arkley

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
Bodena

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
Brierley

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
129.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
Morro

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
Brenthurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
CHENIES PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
Physic

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Barnet

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
WELL APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
TRINDER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
WELL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
AITKEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
GARTHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
ENDERSBY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
ESCOT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
NORTH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
DENTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
MALINS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
Weardale

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
Uplands Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
Elmbank

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
Wollescote

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
Chestnut

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
Colinhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Franklin

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Farover

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
The White

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
Ashley Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
Ullswater

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
ELMBANK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
Beech

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
BARNET ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
Trento

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
Arkley

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
Lavender

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
Men's Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
Marlborough

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
The Jays

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
Cedar House

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
Thuriston

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
124.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
Southview

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
Morningside

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
Belleville

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
Clayton Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
Dunelm

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
Roydon

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
Cherry Tree Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
Charnwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
Pikes's

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
Ashford

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
Pine Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
VYSE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
Three Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
GARTHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
Maple

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
Halcyon

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
127.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
Fountain Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
KERRI CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
Barbridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
Highview

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
Torridon

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
Wychwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
Menton

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
GARDEN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
Oaklands Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
Courtney

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
End

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
Oaklands

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
The Red House

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
128.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
Rocombe

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
Deepdene

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
Tooroak

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
BARNET ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
Ibstock

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
The Kennels

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
Birch Glade

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
Semmering

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
A 411

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
Green Gables

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
Toothacher

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
Amberden

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
Acorns

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
Elms

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
Thornbury

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
Arkley Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
Upland

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
Oakwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
Fairview

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
Cedarwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
Oaklands Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
Cromdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
East

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
Tor Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
Tarnwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Crizene

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Cherry Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
ARKLEY VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
Tilers Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
Harrow

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
Wairaket

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
Moor Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
West House

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
Avebury Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
Hill Crest

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
Sherwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Wych

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
Noge

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
Limecroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
OAKLANDS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
A 411

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
STONECROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
Dapple Oak

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
Woods

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
Tudor House

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
FIELD END

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
Little Foxes

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
The Pines

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
HAZEL MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
Rosewood

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
Men's Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
Roydon

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
End

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
Oaklands

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
The Red House

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
128.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
Deepdene

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
BARNET ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
Ibstock

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
The Kennels

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
Birch Glade

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
Semmering

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
A 411

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
Green Gables

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
Toothacher

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
Amberden

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
Acorns

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
Elms

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
Thornbury

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
Arkley Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
Oakwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
Fairview

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
Cedarwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
Oaklands Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
Cromdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
Tor Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
Cherry Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
Tilers Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
Harrow

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
Wairaket

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
Moor Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
Hill Crest

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
Sherwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
Wych

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
Noge

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
OAKLANDS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
A 411

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
STONECROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
Woods

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
FIELD END



T
his page is intentionally left blank



BARNET ROAD ZEBRA CROSSING

SPEED  SURVEY

BC/001750-07-01_3300_02

Survey with the permission of the Controller of

London Borough of Barnet. Licence No 100017674

© Crown copyright and database right 2018. All rights reserved. 

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordinance

Her Majesty's Stationery Office. 

47

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
Stable End

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
Greenfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
HAZEL MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
Dorin

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
HEDGEROW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
Greenacres

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
BARNET ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
Lily Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
SADDLERS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
66a

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
RAEBARN GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
Shireswood House

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
Broad

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
Scotswood

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
Turnberry

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
75a

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
and Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
Anjalee

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
Rosewood

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
Garth

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
Gresham

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
Ridings Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
Arkley Rise

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
Barley Edge

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
Elena

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
Orchard Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
QUINTA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
Totteridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
Loxwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
Benash

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
Riding Stables

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
Eaves

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
75b

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
Radlett

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
Marchmont

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
Omega

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
131.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
Latona

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
14 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
GARTHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
Leigh

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
ARKLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
Arkley

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
Bodena

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
Brierley

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
129.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
Morro

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
Brenthurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
CHENIES PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
Physic

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
Barnet

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
WELL APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
TRINDER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
WELL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
AITKEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
GARTHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
ENDERSBY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
ESCOT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
NORTH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
DENTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
MALINS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
Weardale

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
Uplands Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
Elmbank

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
Wollescote

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
Chestnut

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
Colinhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
Franklin

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
Farover

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
The White

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
Ashley Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
Ullswater

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
ELMBANK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
Beech

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
BARNET ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
Trento

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
Arkley

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
Lavender

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
Men's Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
Marlborough

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
The Jays

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
Cedar House

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
Thuriston

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
124.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
Southview

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
Morningside

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
Belleville

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
Clayton Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
Dunelm

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
Roydon

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
Cherry Tree Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
Charnwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
Pikes's

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
Ashford

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
Pine Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
VYSE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
Three Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
GARTHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
Maple

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
Halcyon

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
127.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
Fountain Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
KERRI CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
Barbridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
Highview

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
Torridon

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
Wychwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
Menton

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
GARDEN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
Oaklands Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
Courtney

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
End

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
Oaklands

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
The Red House

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
128.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
Rocombe

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
Deepdene

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
Tooroak

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
BARNET ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
Ibstock

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
The Kennels

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
Birch Glade

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
Semmering

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
A 411

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
Green Gables

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
Toothacher

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
Amberden

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
Acorns

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
Elms

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
Thornbury

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
Arkley Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
Upland

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
Oakwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
Fairview

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
Cedarwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
Oaklands Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
Cromdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
East

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
Tor Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
Tarnwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
Crizene

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
Cherry Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
ARKLEY VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
Tilers Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
Harrow

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
Wairaket

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
Moor Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
West House

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
Avebury Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
Hill Crest

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
Sherwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
Wych

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
Noge

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
Limecroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
OAKLANDS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
A 411

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
STONECROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
Dapple Oak

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
Woods

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
Tudor House

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
FIELD END

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
Little Foxes

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
The Pines

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
HAZEL MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
BARNET ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
Lily Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
66a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
Shireswood House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
Scotswood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
Rosewood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
Garth

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
Gresham

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
Orchard Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
Latona

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
GARTHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
Brierley

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
129.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
Brenthurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
Uplands Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
Franklin

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
The White

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
Arkley

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
Lavender

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
Men's Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
Marlborough

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
Thuriston

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
Belleville

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
Clayton Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
Dunelm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
Roydon

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
Three Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
Halcyon

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
127.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
Fountain Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
Wychwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
GARDEN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
Courtney

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
End

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
Oaklands

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
The Red House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
128.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
Rocombe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
Deepdene

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
Tooroak

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
BARNET ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
Ibstock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
The Kennels

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
Birch Glade

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
Semmering

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
A 411

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
Green Gables

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
Toothacher

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
Amberden

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
Acorns

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
Elms

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
Thornbury

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
Arkley Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
Upland

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
Oakwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
Fairview

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
Cedarwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
Oaklands Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
Cromdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
East

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
Tor Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
Tarnwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
Crizene

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
Cherry Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
ARKLEY VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
Tilers Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
Harrow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
Wairaket

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
Moor Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
West House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
Avebury Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
Hill Crest

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
Sherwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
Wych

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
Noge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
Limecroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
OAKLANDS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
A 411

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
STONECROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
Woods

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
FIELD END

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
Little Foxes

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
The Pines



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

London Borough of Barnet 
 

Environment Committee Work Programme  
  
 

November 2020 – Jan 2021 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

49

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 9



 

Title of Report Overview of decision Report Of Issue Type (Non 
key/Key/Urgent) 

25th November 2020 

Business Planning and 
Fees & Charges  

Committee to approve the business 
planning and Fees & Charges report.  

Chair of the Environment Committee 
 
 

Non-key 
 

18th January 2021 

Traffic, Parking and 
CPZ strategic policy 
review  
 
 

Committee to comment on the Traffic, 
Parking and CPZ policy review, 
including effectiveness of 20MPH, 
impact, forward plan, ease of 
implementation and deaths / 
seriously injured. 
 

Chair of the Environment Committee 
 
 

Non-key 
 
 

NRP Programme 
2021/22 
 

Committee to approve the 21/22 
Network Recovery Programme. 
Subject to funding agreed through a 
future Capital Board and P&R 
Committee. 
 

Chair of the Environment Committee 
 
 

Non-key 
 
 

Enforcement report In June 2020 EC agreed to have 
update on policy on fly tipping, 
including better education, 
communication and enforcement, 
particularly penalty charges for 
littering and fly tipping.  
 

Chair of the Environment Committee Non-key 
 

Remedial action for tree 
root damage on the 
Highway 
 

Committee to note the process and 
guidance to be considered.  

Chair of the Environment Committee 
 

Non-key 
 

50



 

Title of Report Overview of decision Report Of Issue Type (Non 
key/Key/Urgent) 

Public Rights of Way 
and Application for a 
Modification Order to 
add paths to the 
Definitive Map 

Committee to note the progress with 
the management of Public Rights of 
Way service and consider the 
priorities for the service for 21/22. 
Committee to also note the 
application of a legal Modification 
Order and agree to an amendment to 
the Councils Definitive Map.  
 

Chair of the Environment Committee 
 

Non-key 
 

11th March 2021 

Time Banding Review 
 

Committee to consider the review of 
Time Banding and recommendations 
for change. 
 

Chair of the Environment Committee  
 
 

Non-key 
 
 

Parks Car Park 
Charging  
 

Committee request that the 
description for car parks and 
changing charging be amended. 
 

Chair of the Environment Committee 
 
 

Non-key 
 
 

 
 

  

51



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Members' Items
	7 Business Planning 2020-25 and Fees & Charges for 202122
	Appendix A - Business Planning Savings Template Environment Committee - MASTER v12

	8 Referral from Chipping Barnet Area Committee to Environment Oct 2020
	Annex 1 - Barnet Road, EN5- Request for Zebra Crossing
	Annex 1 - BC-001750-07-01 Barnet Rd Zebra-Peds Survey
	Sheets and Views
	Peds Survey


	Annex 1 - BC-001750-07-01 Barnet Rd Zebra-Speed Survey
	Sheets and Views
	Speed Survey



	9 Committee Forward Work Programme

